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DHIRAJ & DHEERA!
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Edel Finance Company Limited

Repori on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Edel Finance Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of FEthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial

statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. -

" Foreach matter below, our deseription of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
Jalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
\_' Iy, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment
Ak of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our
gfdures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis

it opinion on the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

511/512, Atlanta Estate, Opp. Westin Hotel, Western Express Highway, Goregaon {East), Mumbai - 400063
Tei.: 022 - 29277]96 / 97 / 98 | ani|‘ infnfﬁ)r‘nr{hirni ~Om I Wahcita: wasnar rrdhireg cam



Key audit matters

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of investments in subsidiary and other group companies (as described in Note 9(a),
9(b) & 9(c) of the Standalone financial statements)

The Company is a Core Investment
Company (CIC) registered with the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and has
investments in subsidiary amounting to
Rs. 17791.51 million in form of equity
shares of Rs. 8290.70  million,
compulsorily convertible preference
shares of Rs. 500.00 million and
compulsorily convertible debentures of
Rs. 9,000.81 million . The Company has
also invested in form of equity shares of
Rs.5029.39 million in other group
companies and Rs 2,000.18 million in
compulsorily convertible debentures of
other Group companies.

These investments are valued at cost and
are required to be assessed for
impairment in accordance with Ind AS
36, when any indicators of impairment
are observed.

In  carrying out such impairment
assessment, a significant judgement of
the management is involved in estimating
the investee company’s “value in use",
with in accordance with Ind AS 36.
Estimation of the value in use requires the
management to apply appropriate
assumptions with respect to the growth
rates for future cash flow projections of
the investee company and

discount rates for determining present
value of such cash flows.

We have identified impairment testing of
Investments in subsidiary and other
group companies as a key audit matter
due to the high degree of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of the
recoverable amount of such investments,
the inherent uncertainty relating to the
assumptions supporting such estimates
and the significance of the investments to
the overall Standalone financial
staterments.

Our  audit procedures included considering the
appropriateness of the processes laid down by the
management for assessment of impairment in the value
of investments in subsidiary and other group companies
combined with procedures performed as follows:

¢  We considered management’s assessment of
impairment from the management experts
wherever considered necessary and assessed
whether any impairment indicators existed for
investment in individual subsidiary and other
group companies.

¢ We traced the net-worth of the individual
subsidiary and other group companies from their
financial statements.

. We assessed the disclosures relating to
investments in subsidiary and other group
companies included in the Standalone financial
Statements in accordance with the
Requirements of Ind AS.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our repor.t".




Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and the circulars,
guidelines and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time (“RBI
Guidelines”). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

"The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

...Our. objectives. are to.obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
ional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:




* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. '

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in

----------- its-Standalone. Ind. AS. financial statements. — Refer Note36 to the Standalone Ind AS

financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.



Iv.

a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 42 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 42 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c} Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Firm Registration Number: 102454W

Chartered Accountants

embership Number: 425098

Place: Mumbai
Date:24" May ,2023
UDIN: 23425098BGWWUV4016




Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

i. (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inciﬁding quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars intangible assets

(b)  The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

{(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, the title deeds of the immovable properties included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name of the company.

(d) Thecompany has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets during the year.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder

ii. (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the vear, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii}b) of the Order is not
applicable

iii.(a) The Company is a Core Investment Company and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the
order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans given are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect

Coffomns gien T T

(¢) The Company is a Core Investment Company and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(¢) of the

order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment.




iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as
applicable.

v. The company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections

73,74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out
by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company

vii. (a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, , Income Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. :

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Income Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 fora
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as
on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes are given below:

e Commissioner o

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 127.57 ] 2017-18 | Income Tax (Appeals)
AY The Commissioner of

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 484.04 ) 2018-19 | Income Tax (Appeals)
AY The Commissioner of

l Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 33.59 i 2020-21 | Income Tax (Appeals)
AY The Commissioner of

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 47.64 i 2020-21 | Income Tax (Appeals)

viii.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

(43 of 1961).

ix. (a) According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender as at the balance sheet date.

_(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

government or any government authority

(c) According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and‘explanation
given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds have been
raised on short term basis.




(e)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

() The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its

x. (a)

(b)

xi. (a)

(b)

(c)

X,

xiil.

X1V,

XV.

~xvi. (a) According to-the information and-explanations-given to-us, we report that the Company being ... ...

subsidiary, joint venture and associate companies and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(Including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause (x)(a) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle- blower complaints have been received during the year by the company. Accordingly,
the reporting under Clause (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there is internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit

procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a CIC company has registered under section 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(b)The company has conducted non-banking financial Core Investment company (CIC) activities

with a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934 during the year.

cerified by us the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations

/Imade by the Reserve Bank of India and the Company continues to fulfill the criteria of a CIC.




(d)Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the

XVil.

XViil.

XiX.

xXX.

xx1

Group does not have any other CICs other than the Company.

The company has incurred cash losses of Rs.32.13 crores in the current financial year, there
were no cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, hence this clause is not
applicable;

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all Habilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses (xx) (a) and (xx) (b) of the Order are not applicable.

The reporting under Clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Financial
Statements of the company. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been
included in this report.

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Firm Registration Number: 102454W

Chartered Accountants

Membership Number: 425098

Place: Mumbai
Date:24" May ,2023
UDIN: 23425098BGWWUV4016




Annexure 2 to Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) '

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Edel Finance
Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to

“provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
irly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
ance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
ance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
ny are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the




unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Firm Registration Number: 102454W
Chartered Accountants

Pariner

Membership Number: 425098
Place: Mumbai

Date:24"™ May ,2023

UDIN: 23425098BGWWUV4016




Edel Finance Company Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

ASSETS
Financial assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents
{b) Loans
(c) Investinents
(d) Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Non-firancial assets
{a} Current tax assets {net)
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment
(d) Other non- financial assets
Total non-financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILIFIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Financial liabilities

{a) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i1} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterpriscs and
small enterprises

(b) Debt securities

(e} Borrowings (other than debt securities)

{d) Subordinated liabilities

(e} Other financial habilitics

Taotal financial liabilities

" Non-financial liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilitics (net)
(b) Provisions
{c) Other non-financial liabilities
Total non-financial liabilities

Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b} Instruments entirely equity in nature
(¢} Other equity
Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Charlered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 102454W

Mumbai May 24, 2023

As at As at
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
7 20.63 10.93
8 9,549.53 1,880.9]
9 31,802.86 27.594.14
10 221 233
41,375.23 29,488.31

1t 411,99 311.92
f2 246.67 455.45
13 224 242
14 2.80 (.74
663,70 770.53

42,038.93 30,258.84

15 1628 17.24
16 14,810.11 6,691.32
[7 18,775.00 10,771.37
18 161.12 161.12
19 721 8.85
26,769.81 17,649.91

20 18.15 18.16
2] 0.08 0.01
22 15.78 9.81
34.01 27,98

23 7,566.75 5,566.75
24 1,650.00 1,650.00
25 6,018.36 5,364.20
15,235.11 12,580.95

42,038.93 30,258.84

| to 56

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors

Exectitive Director & CFQ

DiN : 07297081

< L]

Tarun Khurana
Company S

Mumbai May 24, 2023

Vidya Shah
Director
DN - 00274831




Edel Finance Company Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Revenue from operations
[nterest income

Fee income

Net gain on fair value changes
Total revenue from operations

Other income
Total Revenue

Expenses

Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit / (Loss) before tax

Tax expenses
(1) Current tax
a) Cugrent Tax
b) Adjustment in respeet of current income tax of prior years

(2) Deferred tax expense / (credit) {net)
Total Tax

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

(a) Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurcment gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans (OCI)
Income tax - OCI - that will not be reclassified

Total

Tetal comprehensive income / (loss)

Earnings per equity share {(Face value of Rs. 100 each):

(1) Basic (3)
{2} Diluted ()

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No: 425098

Murmbai May 24, 2023

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
26 662.61 252.37
27 0.09 -
28 1,916.30 944 .90
2,579.00 1,197.27
29 526.92 689.33
3,105.92 1,886.60
30 2,184.91 1,766.47
31 30.80 5.33
32 2.69 11.38
13 0.14 2.07
33 24,58 43.82
2,243.12 1,829.07
862.80 57.53
34 - -
34 - 0.14
- 0.14
34 208.78 {164.43)
208.78 (164.29)
654.02 221.82
0.14 {0.96)
- 0.24
0.14 (0.72)
654.16 221.10
35 9.04 3.07
35 9.04 3.07
fto 56

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e
Ananya/Suneja Vidya Shah
Exccwtive Director & CFO Director

DIN : 60274831

DIN : 67297081
-t

p—=

Tarun Khurana
Company Secreta
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Edel Finance Company Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
A Cash flow from operating aclivities
Profit / (Loss) before tax 862.50 57.53
Adjusements for;
Depreciation and amortisation 0.14 207
Profit en sale of investments (448.85) (961.36)
[mpainment on financial instruments 30.80 5.33
Fair value of financial instruments {1,21561) (601.98)
Provision for gratity and compensated abscnces 0.21 (1.98)
Profit on sale of of fixed assets {net) (0.08) 0.04)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1710.59) (1,500.43)
Adjustments for:
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables - 53.66
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets 012 4572
Decrease / (increase) in loans (7.699.42) 6,558.78
Sale/ (purchase) of Investments {2.544.26) {5,9%0.59)
Decrease / {increase} in other non financial assets (2.06) 401
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables {0.96) (23.65)
Increase / {decrease} in non financial liabilities 5.97 {9.53)
fncrease / (decrease) in other financial liabilitics (1,256.58) (243.67)
Cash used in operating activities (12,267.78) (5 105.70)
Income taxes {paid) {net of refund) (100.05) 18.44
Net cash used in operating activities -A (12,367.83) (1.087.26)
B Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets 0.1l GA47
Net cash generated from investing activities- B 6.11 047
C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Share capital (including Securities Premium) 2.000.00 -
Proceeds / (repayment) from Debt sccurities (refer note 1 below) 9.445.7% (3.680.76)
Proceeds / (repayment} from Borrowings (other than debt securities) (refer note 931.63 357790
! below)
Net cash (used in} / generated from financing activities - C 12,377.42 €102,86)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 9.70 {1,189.65)
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 10.93 1.200.58
20,63 10.93

Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

Notes:
| Cash receipts and payments for transaction with group companies in which the turnover is quick, the amounts are large. and the maturitics arc short are

presented on net basis in accordance with Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.
2 Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 prescribed under the Companics Act {Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 under the companies Act 2013,

3 Refer note 39 for disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from Enancing activities.

Ag per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj For and on bghaif of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm: Repistration Nuinber: 102454W

S $~or
VidyaShah .
ailendra Dadhicn T RGN N Director
DEN 07297081 DIN : 00274831

riner
Membership No: 425098

Taren Khurana
Company Secretg

Mumbai May 24, 2023 umbai May 24, 2023




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Corporate information:

Edel Finance Company Limited (‘the Company’) a public limited company domiciled and incorporated under the
provisions applicable in India under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was incorporated on QOctober 16, 1989
and is wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

The Company was primarily engaged in the business of lending and investment and is registered with the Reserve
Bank of India {‘RBI’) as a Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-
ND-SI). Company got converted to Core Investment Company (‘CIC") as NBFC-CIC-ND-S1 on 09™ October, 2018,

2. Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured
at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest
million, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division III of the Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reperting date
(current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is presented in “Note 40-Maturity Analysis
of assets and liabilities”,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and
reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following

circumstances:

e The normal course of business
e« The event of default
s The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements [e.g. ISDAs (International Swaps and Derivatives
Association)} are only presented net when they satisfy the eligibility of netting for all of the above criteria and not
just in the event of default,

4. Significant accounting policies
4.1 Recognition of interest income and dividend income

4.1.1 Effective interest rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
'FVOCI. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the

expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross
carrying amount of financial instrument.
The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate

of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of
the financial asset. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged

for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at



Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments
penalty interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

Interest income:
The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3°, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR fo the amortised cost {(net of expected
credit foss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired,
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Penal interest income on delayed EMI or pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

Dividend income:
The Company recognised dividend income when the Company’s right to receive the payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Fee and Commission Income:
Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The
Company recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the
relevant contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the Company will collect the

consideration.

Other Income
Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is

recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.
Other ancillary charges are recognized upon realisation.

4.2 Financial instruments:

4.2.1

422

4.2.3

Date of recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.¢. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account, The
Company recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets

or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately ANPIOFL OF v

loss.
Day 1 profit and loss:

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value
in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which
some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

4.24

value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs becorme observable, or
when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account,

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

» Ifthose sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent),

¢ If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cash flow

*  Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (F YTOCT)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

4.3 Financial assets and liabilities:

4.3.1

Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective. interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial assct is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

43.2

433

434

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

Financial assets held for trading;

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a pottfolio of
financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance
sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes,

Investment in equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than subsidiaries, associ ates,
and other group companies) at fair value through profit or loss, unless the management has
elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be measured at
FVTOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading, Such classification is determined on an
mstrument-by-instrument basis. Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost as
permiited under Ind AS 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). The investment
in other group companies are carried at cost. (subsidiaries, associates, and other group
companies).

Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments;

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate, market risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amortised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company issues certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a
component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant ‘net
unrealised loss or gain® on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at amortised
cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial asscts and financial Habilities in this category. are those that are not held for trading. ...

~ and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily

required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

* The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; Or
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

* The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; Or

» The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it
is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value,
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair
value of Habilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such
changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled
to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued
in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/
premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned
on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest
rate.

4.3.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

4.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
The Company didn’t reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and previous
period.

4.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments;
4.5.1 Derecognition of financial asset
A fmancial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets} is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Company alse derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
¢ Itretains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed

.4 contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full-without-material-delay to third party -~ -

under pass through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset"), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities {the 'eventual
recipicnts'), when all of the following conditions are met:

¢ The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it
has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term
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advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at
market rates.

* The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash
flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during
the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual

recipients.
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
* The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset: or

* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the
transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have
been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with
the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment
loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified
as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be

POCI.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows
discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the
extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

4.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow
recognised as new financial liability, is recognised statement of profit and loss.

4.6 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”) on all loans, other debt

.financial assets measured at amortised. cost. together with undrawn.loan . commitment. and.finaneial-. ...

guarantee contracts, in this section ail referred to as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not
subject to impairment,

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate, Because ECL consider the amount and timing
of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when

contractually due.
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Simplified approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying
general approach to measure ECL.

General approach

For afl other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(12Zm ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence of
a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring,.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months

after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) (i.c. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of defauit and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other
relevant forward-looking information.

The Company provides for expected credit loss on group loans based on its estimates of credit assessment
on such loans subject to minimum 0.40% on all group foans as per Company estimates and RBI IRACP

prudential norms.
Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage 1 assets:
Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
{resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised,

Stage 2 assets:
Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from

Stage 3 assets:
Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans.

The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%,
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The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for working capital
facilities is similar to other lending products. The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for working
capital facilities is based on the average effective interest rate that is expected to be charged over the
expected period of exposure to the facilities.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The expected credit losses on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss allowance
for the financial asset.

The Company’s product offering includes a working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit fosses
to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company’s
expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company's future risk mitigation
procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company secks to use collateral, where possible, The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements,
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-
assessed on a quarterly basis. However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral,
Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued using models.
Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as
morigage brokers, or based on housing price indices.

Write-offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value:
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would

.use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants.act in their economic best

interest, A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would usc the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:
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Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date,

Level 2 financial instruments;
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and Labilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted
methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full tifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-coltateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period,

Operating leases:
Company as a lessee:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is. if the
contract conveys the tight to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease ljabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of
use assets arc depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present

value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments

(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable fease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses iis incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of [ease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to
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future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term Jease:

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is compuied by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts o
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year, Diluted earmings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares,

Foreign currency transaction:

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of
the Company. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are recogised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retransfated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they arise.

Retirement and other employee benefit:

4.13.1 Provident fund:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is
a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4.13.2 Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if arny,
is deducted, The present value of the obligation under such benefit pfan is determined based on
independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Benefits in respect of
gratuity are funded with an Insurance Company approved by Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (IRDA),
Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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4.13.3 Compensated absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entittement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

4.13.4 Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs) / Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs):

The Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL”)} has Employee Stock
Option Plans and Stock Appreciation Rights in force. Based on such schemes, parent entity has
granted an ESOP/SAR option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded
manner to company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the
fair value of such stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the
same under the employee cost.

4.14 Property, plant and equipment:

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodelogy, as appropriate, and treated as changes
in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss during the reporting period, in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) fess their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In
respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal,

As per the requirement of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Building (other than factory building) 60 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office equipment ' 5 years

Computers - servers and networks 6 years

Computers - end user devices, such as desktops, faptops, etc. 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
theréof. Any gain ‘or 108s arising on the disposal or rétirefiiént of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment is reversed
subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,

where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence er non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent Habilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related assct is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

4.18.1 Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
4.18.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

4.18.3 Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

4.19  Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the management is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting poelicies:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the managemment has made
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

5.1 Business model assessment :

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how Company’s of financial assets are managed together to achieve a patticular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum,-the reason for their-disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.
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5.5

Significant increase in credit risk:

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2
or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-tooking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) repardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk {both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penally interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment [osses across all categories of financial assets except assets valued at
fair value through Profit & Loss account (FVTPL) requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses
and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of
factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions

regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies, Elements of the ECL models that are

considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

¢  PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

*  The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and the
qualitative assessment

*  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

*  Development of ECL models, inctuding the various formulas and the choice of inputs
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¢ Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

» Seclection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

It has been Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

5.6 Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its

recoverable amount.
5.7 Provisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the
probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a

contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of fosses, the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

5.8 Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5.9 Asset liability management:

Management has made an assessment of its ability to continue and is satisfied that it has the resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

6.  Standards issued but not yet effective :

6.1 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from

01 April 2023,

{i) Amendment to Ind AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement

techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and apply
to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or afler ¢

that pertod.
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The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(i) Amendment to Ind AS 1- Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their *significant” accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency
with the amended requirements.

(iif) Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should
also be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and

decommissioning obligations.
Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101,

The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.
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(Currency: Indian rupees in miltions)

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

7. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- 1 current accounts 2.63 10.93

20.63 10.93
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8.

Loans (at amortised cost)

Term Loans;
Corporate credit - Related Party

Total gross

Less: Impatrment loss allowance
(Refer note 8.4)

Total net
Coliateral :
Unsecured

Total gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
(Refer note 8.4)

Total net

Loans in India
Public sector
QOthers

Total gross

Less: Impairment loss allowance
(Refer note 8.4)

Total net

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

9,587.88 1,888.46
9,587.88 1,888.46
(38.35) (7.55)
9,549,53 1,880.91
958788 1,888.46
9,587.88 1,888.46
(38.35) (7.55)
9,549,53 1,880.91
9,587 .88 1,888.46
9,587.88 1,888.46
(38.35) (7.55)
9,549.53 1,8806.91
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8.A Credit guality of assets

The table below shows the credit quality and the maxémun exposure 1o credit risk based on the Company's year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross without reducing
impainaent aflowances. Detaéls of the Company’s intemal grading for stage classification are explained in Note 45.10.1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in Note 4.6,

a) Credit guality of assets

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Stage 1 Stage2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
High grade 9,587.88 - - 9,587.88 1,888.46 - - 1.888.46
9,587.88 - - 9,587.88 1.888.46 - - 1,888.46

b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL allowances for loans and advances to corporate and retail customers:

The following disclosure provides stage wise reconciliation of the Company's gross carrying amount and ECL aliowances for loans and advances to corporates customers. The transfers of
financial assets represents the impact of stage transfers upon the gross carrying amount and associated allowance for ECL. The net remeasurement of BCL ansing fom stage transfers

represents the increase or decrease due to these transfers,

The *Mesw assets originated /repayments seceived (net)’ represeat the gross carrying amount and associated allowance ECL impact frem transactions within the Company's lending ponfolic.

Reconciliation / movement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Non Credit Impaired Credit Impaired Tatal
Stage Stage 2 Stage 3
Cross Allowance |Gross carryingf Allowance | Gross carrying | Allowance Gross Allowance
Carrying | for ECL Amount for ECL Amount for ECL carrying for ECL
Particulars Antount Amount
Opening Balance 1.888.46 7.55 - - - - 1,888.46 .58
New assets originated / (repayments) received (net) 1.659.42 30.80 - - - - 7.699.42 30.80
Closing Balance 9,587.88 38.35 - - - - 9,587.88 38.35
Reconciliation / movement for the year ended March 31, 2022
Non Credit Empaired Credit Impaired Total
Stage 1 Stape 2 Sla_gF3
Gross Allowance | Gross carrying] Allowance | Gross carrying | Allowance Gross Allowance
Carrying | for ECL Antount for ECL Ameount for ECL carrying for FECL
Particulars Antgunt Amount
Opening Balance 8,447.25 152 - - - - 8,447.25 1.52
New assets originated / (repayments) received (net) {6,558.79) 6.03 - - - - (6.558.7%) 0.03
Closing Balance 1.888.46 7.5% - - - - 1,888.46 71.55
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)
9, Investments

%A Summary of Investinents

As at March 31, 2023 At fair value At cost
At Amortised Designated at fair | Subtotal (subsidiaries/ Total
cost (1) T’"““g" ac T“"“'g')' P&L | sue through Profit] 5= (2+314) fellow (= (1+546)
@ ¢ or loss (4} subsidiaries/
Equity instruments - - 4,103.16 - 4,103.16 24,821.08 28924.24
Debt Sccurities - - 2,858.62 - 2.858.62 - 2.858.62
Preference Shares - - - - - 2G.00 26.00
FOTAL - Gross (A) - - 6,96E.78 - 5,961.78 24.841.08 31.8302.86
(i) Invesinents outside [ndia B - - - - -
(ii} [nvestment ist India - - 6,961,78 - 6,961.78 24841 .08 31,8G2.86
Total (B) - - 6,961.78 - 6,961.78 14,841.08 31802.86
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - - - - - -
Taotal Net (A-C) - - 6,961.78 - 6,961.78 24,841 .08 31,802.86
As at March 3, 2022 At fair value At cost
. ) (subsidiaries/ .
tised i tal
M 2]';"{1;" ‘Through OCH | Through P&L v[)l“‘gt:““’d :‘;‘";E . i“(g’f;i " fetlow (7;:((;?;(,)
2) (3 e ;oug4 rolt i subsidiaries/
or doss (4) associates) (6)
Equity instruinents - - - - - 2322200 23.222.00
Debt Securities - - 4,372.14 - 437214 - 437214
TOTAL - Gross (A) - - 4,372,114 - 4372.14 23,222.09 27,594.14
(i) Investinents oulside India - - - - . . .
(if) Investrment in India - - 4,372.14 - 4,372.14 23,222.00 27,504.14
Tetal (B) - - 4,372.14 - 4,372.14 23,222.00 27.894.14
Less: Aliowance for impairment (C) - - - - . - .
Total Net (A-C} - - 4,372.14 - 4,372.14 23,222.00 27,594, 14

Notes:
1) Picase refer note 9.B & 9.C- Investment details for further details
2) Please refer noie 44 - Fair value measurement for valuation methodology

9.B Investments in redeemable preference shares measured at amortised cost:

i) Credit quality of assets:

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum expesitre to credit risk based on the Company's year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment ailowances. Details
of the Company's internal grading for stage classifieation are explained in Note 45.D.1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in Note 4.6,

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Stage I Stage I1 Stage [T Total Stape I Stage I} Stage 11 Total
Performing 2000 - - 20.00 - - - N
High grade - - - - - - . -
20,00 - - 20.00 - - - N
i} Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying for inv ts int red! ble preference shares:
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Stage 1 Stage T Stage I Total Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage HI Totak

Gross carrying amount - opening balance - - -
Assets acquited or recognised 20,00 - - 20.00 - - . -
Unwinding of discount (recognised i interest income) - - -
Changes to contractual cash flows due te medifications not
resulting in derecognition S S S

Assets derecognised or matured B

Closing balance 20.60 - - 20,00 - - - N

Please refer note 9.C- Investment details for further detaits
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{Currency: indian rupees in milliens}

9,
9.C

Tavestmenis {continaed)

Scrip wise details of Invesiments

As al March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Face Value {Rs,) Guantity Amount Face Value (Rs.} Quantily Amonnd
Equity Instruments (Frdly paid up }
Ar Cosr
Subsidiary company
Edehweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Equity instrumenis %% 10 4.65.35.367 5,356.17 il 46535167 535017
Envestments in Compulsory Convertiple Preference Shares 16 13,59,955 500.00 0 13.59.955 50100
0.01%% Un-Secured Compulsory Convertible Debenture® 1.800 90.00.000 9.008.81 1.000 90.00.600 900100
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 100 2.75.80,225 2.034.53 160 2.75.80.225 294453
Fellow Subsidinries
Tidelweiss Retail Finance Limited 10 30.00.000 264.00 0 30.00.000 26400
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - - - 10 6049218 129.33
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited** [14] 6967613 73389 10 69.67.613 73389
0.01% Un-Secured Compulsory Convertible Debenture- ECap 1.000 20.00,000 2000.18 100D 20.00.0600 2.00t.00
Equitics Limited {Formerly Edel Land Limited}
ECL Finance Limited 10 55.00.60.000 403150 - - -
Associate companies (8l 30.03.23)
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly Edejweiss
Secunties Limited) - - - 10 18.34.455 2.30H.08
Others
At fair value through profit and loss account
Nuvama Wealth Mznagement Limited {Formetly Edebweiss 10 18.34.455 410316 . - -
Securities Limited}
Total (A} 28,924.24 23,222.00
Debt Securities
At fair value through profic and loss account
9.75% Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Perpeteal Bonds 10.00.000 71 60.24 10.00.000 71 60.26
10.25% EC1, Finance Limiled Perpetual Bonds * 10,00.000 2400 2,691.45 - - -
Edel Land Lisnited- NLD L.00.000 564 86.15 1.00.000 27.337 4292068
Edelhweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - NLD 1.60.000 107 20.78 1.00.000 107 19.80
Total (B) 2,858.62 4,372.14
Others - Non-Convertible Redcemable Preference Shares
At Cost
Subsidiary company
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 10,00 20.00.000.00 20.00 - - -
Faral (C) 20.60 -
Total (A+8+C) 31,202.86 27,594.14

@@ 63.00.000 Equily Shares are pledged with Beacon Trusteeship Limited as security against Non-Convertible debentures issue by Company.

* Pledped with Beacon Trustecship Limited as securily against issue of Non Convertible Debentures issued by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

*# Pledged with Catalyst Trusteeship Limited as security against issue of Nifly Linked Debentures issued by FCap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited}

{@: Eamtarked in the matter of Nuvame Clearing Services Litd.

Refer note 44 - Fair value measurement for valuation methodelogics for investments
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10,

11

12,

Other financial assets

Deposits placed with/ for exchange/ depositories

Deposits- others
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes (Net of provision for tax )

Deferred tax assets {net)
Deferred tax assets / (Liabilities)

Loans / Security Receipts

Provision for expected credit loss

Unused tax loss
Accumulated losses

Emplovee benefit obligations

Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles

Difference between book and tax depreciation

Investments and other financial insfruments
Unrealised (gain) / loss on investments (net)

Others

As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

1.90 1.90
0.18 0.18
0.13 0.25
2.21 2.33
411.99 311.92
411.99 311.02
9.65 1.90
662.30 421.03
(0.04) (0.02)
0.05 0.21
(458.35) :
33.06 32.33

246.67 453.45
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Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Currency: Indian rupees in miliions)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

i4.  Other non-financial assets
(Unsecured considered good, uniess stated otherwise)

Prepaid expenses 0.50 0.01
Vendor Advances 1.61 0.20
Advances to employees 0.45 045
Others 0.24 0.08
2.80 0.74
15. TFrade Payables
Payablc to ;
Trade payables to non-related parties 13.96 10.77
{inciudes sundry creditors, provision for
expenses.customer payables and net payable for
settlement to clearing house )
Trade payables to related parties 232 6.47
16.28 17.14

15.A  Details of dues to micro and small enterprises

Trade Payables includes Re.Nil (March 31, 2022 : Rs.0.07 mitlion) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Smal and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006
No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this act. The aforementioned is based on the responses reccived by the
Conpany to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Acs.

15.B  Trade Payables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023 Qutstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilicd Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years Maore
than 3
years
(i) MSME - . B - - - -
(ii} Others 13.23 - 3.00 0.85 0.00 4.00 16.28
TFaotal 13.23 - 3.00 (.05 0.00 9.00 16.28
As at March 31, 2022 Q ding for foliowing periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Not due Lessthan [ year | 12 years | 2-3 years More
than 3
years
{i) MSME 0.07 . - - - - 0.07
(ii} Others 10.34 - 6.83 - - . 17.17
Total 10.41 - .83 - - - 17,24
16. Debt securities As at As at
At amortised eost March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Refer note 16.4 and 16.8)
Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures
Benchmark linked debentures 2.216.24 4,716.65
Non-Convertible Debentures 2.155.07 -
Unsecured
Benchmark linked debentures 5.748.7% 197468
Commercial paper 4,690.09
14810.11 6,6091,33
Debt Sceurities in India 14.810.14 6,691.33

Debi Sccurities outside India - -

14,8181 - - 6,691.33




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Cumency: Indian rupees in milliens)

t6  Debt securities (continued)
16.A Detaiis of debt securities :

Benchmark linked debentures
Benchmark linked debentures are sccured by way of a pari passu charge over the immovable property, charge against reccivabie and

investment and corperate guarantce from the holding company.

It case of benchmark linked debentures, the interest rate is linked to the performance of the underlying indices and is fluctuating in nature.
Certain benchmark linked debentures have a clause which may trigger redemption cvent on hitting a pre determined level benchmark index,
Redeemable Non-Coavertible Debentures

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by way of exclusive andfor pari passu charge on the assets of the company incleding
loans and advances, receivables, investments, stock in frade, current & others assets and immovable property/tixed assets held by the

Company.

16.B Maturity profile of debt securities are set out below:

Secured Benchmark Linked Debentures Unsecured Benchmark Linked Debentures
Maturity Month Amount outstanding as at Amount cutstanding as at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
May-2022 - 232.50 - -
Jun-2022 - 2,348.60 B -
Ang-2022 - 47.90 - -
Sep-2022 - 10.00 - B
Dec-2022 - 2.50 -
Dec-2023 7.50 7.50 - -
Jan-2024 33.50 33.50 - -
Feb-2024 4,70 4.70 - -
Mar-2024 1,928.70 306.00 - -
Apr-2025 21.40 - - -
Mar-2024 - - 3,749.88 R
Jan-2027 - - 40.00 40.00
Jun-2027 170.00 170.00 - -
Jan-2028 - - 1,896.15 1,874.60
2,165.80 3,157.20 5,086.03 1,914.00
Associated accruals * 50.44 1,559.45 62,608 60.68
Total 2,216.24 4,716.65 5,748.71 1,974.68

* Interest accrued but not due is payable en maturity of debentures.

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible

Maturity Debentares
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Rate of interest i0.18% pa. NA
within 1 year -
1 -3 years - -
>3 years 2,000.00 -
2,000.00 B
Associated accroals # 155.07 R
Total 215507 -
) Commerciai Paper
Maturit
B March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rite of imiiee 570 9..90% pa [N -
within | year 4,800.00 -
4,800.00 .
109.91 -

Less: Unamortized discount

4,690.09 =




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
I7. Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Af amortised cost
Unsecured
Loan and advances from related parties 11,775.09 10,771.37
11,775.09 10,771.37
Borrowings in India 11,775.09 10, 778.37
Borrowings from outside India - -
11,775.09 10,771.37

17.A Details of Borrowings other than Debt Securities

Loan and advances from related parties -
Maturity Amount outstanding as at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

13.25%-14.25% p.a.  13.90%-15.09% p.a.

Rate of interest

within 1 year - 4.10
1 -3 years 11,619.53 10,683.80
11,619.53 10,687.90
Associated accruals * 155.56 §3.47
Total 11,775.09 10,771.37
* Associated accruals include interest accrued . Interest accrued but not due is payable on next interest payment date.

18. Subordinated Liabilities As at As at
At amortised cost March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Refer note 18.4)

Unsecured
Subordinated debentures
Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures 161.12 16812
161.12 161.12
Subordiated liabilities in India 161.12 161.12
Subordiated liabilities outside India - -
161.12 161.12

18.A Maturity profile and rate of interest of subordinated liabilities are set out below:

Unsecured subordinated liabilities -
Interest Rate 11.00% p.a.

Maturity Mouth Amount outstanding as at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
s S . s T sene
150.00 150.00
Add: interest accrued® F1.12 11.12
Total 161.12 161.12

* Interest accrued but not due is payable on next interest payment date.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
19, Other financial liabilities
Other payables - 1.64
Unclaimed matured debentures 6.61 6.61
Accrued salaries and benefits 0.60 0.60
7.21 8.85
20. Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for taxation (Net of advance tax) 18.15 18.16
18.15 18.16

21. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 38) 0.07 _

Compensated leave absences 0.01 0.01
0.08 0.01

22.  Other non-financial liabilitics
Statutory liabilities* 15.70 9.54
Others .08 0.27
15.78 9.81

* Includes withholding taxes, profession tax and other statutory dues payables




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes te the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in miflions)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares Amogunt No. of shares Amount
23. Eguity share capital
Autherised :
Equity Shares of Rs.100 each 22,85,00,000 22,850.00 22,85,00,000 22,850.00
Preference shares of Rs.100 each 5,00,06,000 5,000.00 5,00,00,000 5,000.00
27,85,00,000 27,850.00 27,85,00,000 27,850.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
Equity Shares of Rs.100 each 7,56,67,188 7,566.75 5,56,67,388 5,560.75
7,56,67,388 7,566.75 5,56,67,388 5,566.75
23.A Reconciliation of number of shares
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Ousstanding af the beginning of the year 5,56,67,388 5,566.75 5,56,67,188 5,566.75
Additional equity shares issued during the year 2,00,06,000 2,000.00 - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 7,56,67,388 7,566.75 5,56,67,388 5,506.75

Naotes:
During the financial year 2022-23 the Company has issued 20,00,00,00 filly paid-up cquity shares of Rs. 160 each aggregating 1o Rs. 2000 million to Edelweiss
Financial Services Limited.

23.B Terms/vights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share held.

In the event of fiquidation of the Company, the equity sharchelders will be entitled to receive the remaining assels of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, if any, in preportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

23.C Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % helding
Holding company
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL)* 7,56,67,388 100.00% 5,56,67,388 100.00%
7,56,67.388 100.00% 5,56,67.388 160.00%
* including 6 shares held by Nominees of EFSL
23.0 Details of shares held by prometers in the Company
As at March 31, 2023
Promater name No. of shares at Change during No. of shares at Yoof total % Change
the beginning the year the end of the shares during the year
of year
the vear
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited* 5,56,67,388 2,00,00,000 7,56,67,388 100.00% -
Fotal 5,56,67,388 2,00,06.000 7,56,67,388 100.00% -
As at March 31, 2022
Promoter name No. of shares at Change during No. of shares at Yeof total % Change
the beginning the year the end of the shares during the year
RENR - g .
the year
Ldelweiss Financial Services Limited* 5,56,67,388 - 5,56,67,388 100.00% -

5,56,67,388 - 5,56,67,388 100.60% -

Total
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

23.E Details of shares held by sharehalders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

23.F
24,

24.A

Edclweiss Financial Scrvices Limited*

* including 6 shares held by Nominees of EFSL

As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares % holding

As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares % helding

7,56,67,388 100.00%

5,56,67,38% 100.00%

7.56,67.388 100.00%

5,56,67,388 100.00%

There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment,

Instruments entirely equity in nature

Compulsory Convertibie Preference Shares (CCPS)
(16,500,000 CCPS - 0.01% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
(“CCPS™) of face value of Rs. 100/4)

Reconciliation of number of shares

QOuitstanding at the beginning of the year
Additionai shares issued during the year

Cutstanding at the end of the year

Terms of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ("CUPS")

As at March 31,2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares Amount Na. of shares Amount
1,65,00,000 1,650.00 1,65,00,000 1,650,00
1,65,00,000 1,650.00 1,65,00,000 1,650.00

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares Amount Nao. of shares Amount
1,65,00,000 1,650 1,65,00,000 1,050
1,65,00,600 1,650.00 1,65,00.000 1,650.00

The Cempany has issued and alloted 65,600,000 (.01% CCPS on March 9, 2021 convertible inte Equity shares on March 8, 2026 at a ratie of 1:1.

The Company kas issued and alloted 1,00,00,000 0.01% CCPS on March 20, 202[ coavertible into Equity shares on March 19, 2026 at a ratio of 1:1.
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(Currency: Indian rupees in mitlions)

25. Other Equity

15.A

-l
h

f.

as
.

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

. Capital redemption reserve 84,34 84.34
. Capital Reserve (3,999.11) (3,999.11)
. Securities premiwm reserve 4.485.38 448538
. Statutory reserve [,413.76 1,282.95
. Retained earnings 3,999.47 3,476.12
. Deemed capital contribution - Equity 2.25 2325
. Impairment reserve 32.27 3227
6,018.36 5,364.20

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital redemption reserve
The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisians of the

Companies Act, 2013,

. Capital Reserve

Capital reserve is created on merger of Edelweiss Finvest Limited in Edel Finance Company Limited.

Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes

such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

. Statutory reserve

Reserve created under 45-1C(1) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 by transferring a sum not less than twenty per cent of net profit
as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before dectaring dividend.

. Retained earnings

Retained carnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings after taxes.

Deemted capital contribution - Equity
Deemed capital contribtion relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its

employee share option plan.

Impairment reserve
As per the RBI circutar RBI/2019-20/170 dated 13th March, 2020, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than the

provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), NBFCs (CICs) shall appropriate the difference from
their net profit or loss after tax {o a separate ‘Impairment Reserve’. Further, no withdrawals shall be permitted from this reserve

without prior permission from the RBL.
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
26. Interest Income
on financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans 585.88 244 53
Interest income on debt securities 1.10 (.90
on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income on debt securities 75.63 6.94
662.01 252.37
27. Fee income
Processing and other fees 0.09 -
(.09 -

Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers and its reconciliation o amounts reported in
statement of profit and loss:

Service transferred at a point in time

Service transferred over time 0.09 -
Total revenue from contract with customers 0.09 -
28. Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
On investments and securities held for trading 1,916.30 94490
1,916.30 944,90
Fair value changes
Realised 700.69 342,92
Unrealised 1,215.01 601.98
1,916.30 944,90
29. Other income
Profit on sale of investments 448 85 650.08
Interest on income Tax Refund .70 3795
Miscellaneous income 77.37 1.30

526.92 689.33




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

30.

3L

32

Finance costs

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest on borrowings other than debt sccurities

Interest on debt securities
Interest on subordinated Habilities
Other finance cost and bank charges

Impairment on financial instruments

On financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Expected credit loss
Loans and financial instruments
Trade receivables w/off recovery

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages (refer note 33.8)
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,607.23 47728
550.68 1.247.66
16.50 16.50
10.50 2503
2,184.91 1,766.47
30.80 6.04

. (0.70)
30.80 533
2.38 10.51
0.13 0.54
0.18 0.33
2.69 11.38




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
33. Other expenses
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 33.4) 1.36 3.26
Directors' sitting fees 1.41 0.68
Legal and professional fees 6.33 5.07
License fees - 11.14
Rates and taxes 0.32 -
Rent (refer note 33.8) - 0.64
Repairs and maintenance (refer note 33.B) 0.12 0.06
Computer software - 0.03
Corporate guarantee commission 6.82 6.93
Clearing & custodian charges 1.74 0.34
Rating support fees (refer note 33.B) 2.79 2.70
Office expenses (refer note 33.B) 2.55 0.54
Goods & Service lax expenses 5.97 11.11
Stamp duty 0.46 0.48
Stock exchange expenses 1.24 0.43
Travelling and conveyance - 0.34
Miscellaneous expenses (6.53) 0.07
24.58 43.82
33.A Aauditors' remuneration:
As a Auditor
Audit fees 0.75 1.25
Limited Review 0.45 1.40
Certification 0.13 0.59
Reimbursement of expenses 0.03 6.02
1.36 3.26

33.B Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs
expenditure like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit
of itself and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is
reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other
companies, actual identifications etc. On the same lines, employees’ costs expended (if any) by the
Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as
identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 32 and 33 include reimbursements paid.




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

34. Income Tax

Component of income tax expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current tax - -
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years - 0.14
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 208.78 4.34
Deferred tax relating to unused tax losses - (168.77)
Total tax charge for the vear (refer note 34.A) 208.78 (164.29)
Current tax - .14
Deferred tax (refer note 34.B) 208.78 (164.43)

34.A The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Profit/ (loss) before taxes 862.80 57.53
Statutory lncome Tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Tax charge at statutory rate 217,85 14.48
Adjustiment in respect of current income tax of prior year - 0.14
Tax effect of :
Difference between tax base due to Indexation Benefit available on Capital Assets (8.26) (9.97)
Effcct of recognition of deferred tax asset on prior period losses - earlier not - {(168.77)
recognised
Others (0.11) UAYD
Current Tax Expenses Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss 208.78 {164.29)

Effective Income Tax Rate 24.20% -285.57%
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Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in mitlions)

35, Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Driluted carnings per share is catculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company with the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Net profit / (loss) aitributable to equity holders of the Company (A) 654.02 22182

Weighted average number of shares

- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,56,67,388 5,56,67.388

- Number of equity shares issued during the year 2,00,60,000 -

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 7.56,67,388 5.56,67.388

Total number of CCPS outstanding at the end of the year 1,65,00,000 1,65,00,000

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) 7,23,86,566 7.21,67.388

(based on the date of issue of shares)

Weighted average number of diluted equity shares outstanding during 7.23.86,566 7.21,67.388

the year (C)

Adjusted net profit / (loss) for diluted EPS (D) 654.02 221.82

Basic earnings per share (in rupees) (A/B) 6.04 307
9.04 3.07

Diluted eamnings per share (in rupees)

36. Contingent Liability:

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims
and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever
necessary. The Company records a Hability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and
discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the
Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes

probable.

The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materiatly adverse effect on the Company's financial

position and results of operations,
Details of contingent liability

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Taxation matters of assessment year AY 2014-15 & AY 2015-16 in
) . : . . 114.88 114.88
respect of which appeal is pending with tax authorities

The Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income
under Section [4A of Income Tax Act 961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, The company has filed appeal/s and is
+ defending its position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors,
company is reasonably certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits on this ground is remote™

Corporate guarantee given by the Company on behalf of its holding company to third party

e culars As at As at
(&C&——_ 4, March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
o
Guardieepito trustees of non convertible debenture hotders % C.?_\MP - 2,304.08
[ ff‘ "\_\




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financiaf statements for the year ended March 3%, 2023

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

37.

Segment reporting

Primary Segment {Business segment)

The Company being CIC, has only capital business segment in the current year L.e March 31, 2023, Due to Edehweiss Finvest Limited being merged with itself,
the company has identified and disclosed segment information in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments. Information provided
in segment is accurate and complete. The identificd segments are i c. Capital based business, Freasury business, Financing business & others,

Segment Activities covered

Capitat based business Income from investments and dividerd income
Treasury business Income from Treasury operations

Financing business Wholesale and retail financing

Income for each segment has been specifically identitied. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either speeificalty identified with individual segments or have
been allocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, asscis and {iabilities have been
prepared.

Secondary Segment
Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment and
therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)
38. Defined benefit plan

a) Defined contribution ptan - Provident funds
The Company recognised Rs.0.11 million (Previous vear : Rs. 0.57 million} for provident fund and other contributions in the Statement of profit

and loss.

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a non-contributory defined henefit arrangement
providing lump-sum gratuity benefits expressed in terms of final monthly salary and year of service, covering all employees. The plan provides
a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972,
The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31. 2023, The
present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected
Unit Credit Method,
Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised
in the Company’s financial statements as at batance sheet date:

i) Movement in defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening batances to the closing balances for defined benefit liability and its components:

Defined benefit obligation

Particulars March 31, 2023 Marci 31, 2022
Opening Balance (.01 2.15
Current service cost .03 -
Interest cost - 0.03

0.02 2.18

Other comprehensive Income
Remeasurcment loss (gain):
Actuarial loss {gain) arising from;

Experience 0.02 (0.42)
Financial assumptions 0.01
Demographic assumptions - -
0.03 (6.42)
Others
Transfer I/ (Out) 0.03 (1.56)
Benefits paid - (0.21)
Closing Balance 0.08 (0.01)
ii) Components of defined benefit plan cost: For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Recognised in Statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 0.03 -
interest cost - -
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) - (0.04)
Total .03 (0.04)
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/(asset) 0.14 {0.96)
Total 0.14 (0.96)
iii} Reconciliation of Fair Vatue of Plan Assets
- As at o “Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of the year 2.80 2.60
Contributions by Employer - 0.21
Benetits Paid - (0.21)
Interest Income on Plan Assets 0.17 0.13
Re-measurements
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on (0.067)
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 0.07
Fair Value of Plan Asscts at end of the year 2.90 2.80
Actual Return on Plan Assels 0.10 0.20



Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)
38. Defined benefit plan (continued)
b} Defined benefit plan - Gratuity {continued)

iv) Net Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Present Value of DBO 0.08 {0.01)
Fair Value of Plan Asscts 2.90 2.80
Liability/ {Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet (2.82% (2.81)
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] 282 2.81
Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net 2.65 271
assets to asset ceiling)
Net Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet 0.1 (0.10)
Of which, Short term Liability - -
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities: (Gain)/Loss 0.02 (0.42y
v} Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity instruments 0% 0%
Debt instruments 0%, 1%
Real estate % 0%
Derivatives 0% 0%
Investment Funds with Insurance Company 99.5%, 100%;
Of which, Unit Linked 83.0%, 85.7%
Qf which, Traditional/ Non-Unit Linked 14.5% 14.1%
Asset-backed securities 0% 0%
Structured debt 0% 0%
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5%4 0.1%
Total 100.00% 100.00%
vi} Movement in Other Comprehensive Income
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain (0.96) -
Re-measurements on DBO
a. Actuarial (Lossy Gain from changes in demographic assumptions - -
b. Actuarial {Loss)/ Gain from changes in financial assumptions {0.01) .
¢, Actuarial {Loss) Gain from experience over the past year (0.62} 0.42
Re-measurements on Plan Assets
Return on Plan assets, excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined (0.07) 0.07
benefit Lability/ (asset)
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling 0.24 (1.45)
excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset)
Batance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain {0.82) (0.96)
vii} Movement in Surplus/ (Deficit)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Surplus/ (Deficit) at start of year T : . . 0.08 . (.76}
Net Transfer (In) Out (0.03) 1.55
Movement during the year
Current Service Cost (0.03) -
Net Interest on net DBO - 0.04
Re-measurements — (Losses)/ Gains 0.14 (0.96)
Contributions/ Benefits - 0.21
017 (.08

Surplus/ (Deficit) at end of year




Edel Finance Company Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)
38. Defined benefit plan {continued)
b} Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (continued)

Actuarial assumptions:

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date: As at As st
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount Rate 7.10% 5.90%
Salary Growth Rate 7.06% 7.00%
Withdrawal/Attition Rate (based on categories) 16.00% 16.00%
Interest Rate on Net DBO (% p.a.) 5.90% 5.00%
Mortality Rate 1ALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
35 ]

Expected weighted average remaining working fives of employees

Notes:!

a) The discount rate are based on the benchmark yields available on Government Bonds at the valuation date with terms matching that of the

b} The estimates of future salary increases iakes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

¢} Assumptions regarding fiture mortalily experience are set in accordance with the statistics published by the Life Insurance Corporation of

Sensitivity analysis:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have

affected the detined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate {+/- 1%4) 0.01 0.01 - -
Discount Rate (+- 1%) 0.01 0.01 - -

Withdrawl] Rate (+/- 1%) - -

The above sensitivity analysis have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there arc no
other changes in market conditions at the reporting date. In practice, generally it docs not occur. When we change one variable, it affects to
others. In calculating the sensitivity, project unit credit method at the end of the reporting period has been applied,

¢} Compensated absences ;

The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on actuarial

valuation, The leave encashment on separation is paid on basic salary.




Edet Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Cwitency: Indian rapees in millions)

3%. Change in liabilities arising from financing acitivies

. As at Changes in Fair ) " As at
Particulars April 1, 2022 Cash Flows value Others (net) March 31, 2023
Debt securities 6,691.33 9,445.79 - (1,327.01) 14 810,11
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 10,271.37 911.63 - 72.09 11,775.09
Subordinated liabilitics 161.12 - - - 61,12

17,623.82 10,377.42 - (1,254.92) 26,746.32

, As at Changes in Fair As at

sh F 5 thers *
Particulars April 1, 2021 Cash Flows value Others (net) March 31, 2022
Debt securities 10,665.81 (3,680.76) - (293.72) 6,691.33
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 7.136.05 1,577.90 - 5742 1).771.37
Subordinated liabilities 161.12 - - - [61.12
17,962.98 {102.86) - {236.30) 17,623.82

* Includes the effect of interest acerued but not paid on borrowing, securities premium on issue of debt securities
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Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

41. Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Related Party Transactions"

List of refated parties and relationship:
Helding Company

Subsidiary Company with whotn the transactions have
taken place in curreat or previous year

Fellow subsidiaries with wham the transactions have
taken place in current or previous year

Associate Companies (till 30.03.23)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Allium Firance Private Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edeltweiss Investment Adviser Limited
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited

ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Lirzited)
ECap Securities And Investments Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Fdel Investments Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edeiweiss General Insurance Company Limited
Edelweiss Global Wealth Managensent Lisnited
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Sccurities And Investments Private Limited
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Nuvama Wealth and Investimient Limited (fonmerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Maragement Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Sccurities Limited)
Nuvama Asset Marragement Limited (formerly known as ESL Securitics Limited}

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limiteg (formezly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited)
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited}

Manager & Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer

Tarun Khurana
Ananya Suneja

Vidya Shah Non- exccutive director
Atui Ambavat Independent Director
Sunil Pharterpekar independent Director
Vinod Juneja Independent Director
Ananthkrishanan S (1i)] August 10. 2021) Company Scerelary
Ravindra Dhobale (till May 31.2021) Chief Financial Qfficer
Sujit Kumar Pandey (till May 24. 2021} Manager

Sunil Nagrani {(from fune 1, 2021 tilf February [1.2022) Chief Financial Officer

5. Ranganathan (tif] January 9, 2023) Non- executive director




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in million}

41, Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Related Party Transactions" (continued)
St.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2022-23 2062122
Transactions with related parties:
i) Capital account transactions
1 [ssue of cquity shares o Edeiweiss Financial Services Limited 2,600.00 -
2 Purchase of equity sharcs from Edebweiss Financial Services Limited 4,031.50 2.068.42
3 Sale of equity shares to Edelweiss Securitics And Envestiuents Private Limited 578.18 846,80
4 Issuc of Nen- Convertible Debentures to ECap Fquities Litnited {formerly Edel Land Limited 1.640.00 -
ECL Finance Limited 220.00 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 140.00 -
5 Fnvestments in preference shares of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Scrvices Limited 20.00 -
& Investments in Compulsory Convertible Debentures ECap Equitics Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited} - 2.000.00
7 Investment in equily shares Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited B 2.501.20
(11} Current account transactions
1 Loans takea from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited §,373.80 738214
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 1,400.00 -
Edelweiss Financiat Scrvices Limited 9.698.30 8.055.30
Alfiumn Finance Private Eimited 230.00 -
2 Leans repaid to Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 11.006.40 9.675.51
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited} 1,400.00 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Eimited 6,364.08 2.110.00
3 Loans given to Hdelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2620.70 45.00
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Litaited - 1.300.00
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 4,.961.10 5,801.G0
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 3,706.08 250.00
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 685.71 -
Comtrade Conmmwodities Services Limited 18.85 -
Edelcap Securities Linited 2,193.55 .
ECap Securities And Iavestments Limited 337127 -
4 Loans given repaid by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 949.20 50.51
Nuvama Wealth and Investiment Limited - 1,300.60
ECap Equities Limited (formeriy Edel Land Limited) 5.793.95 12.594.10
Edclweiss Altemative Asset Advisors Eimited - -
Edefweiss Sccurities And Investments Private Limited 4,560.00 -
Edelcap Securitics Limited 638,78 -
5 Redemptien - Debentures by ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) - 273504
0 Buyback / redemption- benchmark linked debentures ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 3,554.02 431873
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 19.12
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited i8.84 -
7 Tssue oof benchmark linked debentures ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edet Land Limited) 1,700.00 -
Edef Investiments Limited 700.00 -
Edelcap Securitics Eimited 970.00
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited IBD.GO -
8 Redempition/Sale of investinent in benclmark linked debenture ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edei Fand Limited) 31.810.32 -
9 Purchase of perpetuat bond from ECap Equities Limited (formerly £del Land Limited) 492.28 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2,130.43 -
Other investment purchased from - 68.63

ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)
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4F Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Related Party Transactions” (continued)
Sr.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2022-23 2021-22
(i Current account transactions (continued)
H Interest expense on loans taken from Edelweiss Rusal & Corporate Services Limited 151.55 340.63
ECap Equities 1.imited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 1.67 -
Fdelweiss Financial Services Limited 1,445.50 136.65
Allium Finance Private Limited 8.52 .
12 Other fimancial cost paid to Nuvama Wealth and Investiment Limited 3.83 2358
Nuvama Asset Management Liméted 5.70 -
13 Interest expense on subordinate debt ECap Eqguities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited} 770 T.70
ECL Finance Limited 6.16 0.10
Edelweiss Rura & Corporate Services Limited 2.64 2.64
14 Interest expense on non- convertible debentures ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 127.38 -
ECL. Finance Limited 17.00 .
Edehweiss Retaii Finance Limited 10.87 -
15 Enterest inconie on scourities Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 6.88 6.94
ECL Finance Limited 68.75 -
i6 Fair value/ Interest income ¢:1 securities Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 4,76
Edelweiss Rusal & Corporaic Services Limited - 627.68
17 Interest inceme on lan given to ECap Equities Eimited (formerly Fdel Land Limited} 232,85 194.76
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 27.35
Edebweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 25.03 1.11
Edeiweiss Alternative Assct Advisors Eimited - -
Edelweiss Securities Anrd Investiments Private Limited 217.24 21.32
Edelweiss Globai Weaith Management Limited 36.74 -
Edelcap Securities Limited 12.36 -
Comtrade Commeditics Services Limited 0.64 -
ECap Securities And Investments Limited 7.63 .
18 Interest income on debentures (CCD) Edelweiss Rural & Corperate Services Limited 0.90 0.90
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 0.20 0.0¢
1% Lepal and professional fees paid 1o Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited - .62
Edelweiss Rural & Cormporate Services Limited 005 0.04
20 Cost reimbursements paid o (net) Ldelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2.54 0.74
21 Rating support fees paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - -
Tdelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.08
22 Corporate guarantee support fee received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.09 -
23 Corporate puarantee support fee paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.71 1.i2
Edelhweiss Rumal| & Corporate Services Limited 6,82 6.93
24 Reimbursement received from Edclweiss Custodiaf Services Limited - 240
25 Remuneration to Key Management Personnel (Refernote 1) Ravindra Dhobale . 1.49
Sujit Kumar Pandey - 0.49
Sunil Nagrani - 7.36
Anantikrishanan § - {.50
26 Directors' sitting fees Atul Ambavat 0.39 0.34
Vinod Juneja 0.37 0.34
0.35 -

Sunil Pharterpekar
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41, Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Related Party Transactions” {continued)
Sr.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2022-23 2021-22
(HIy)  Secendary market transactions
1 Saie of Property, Plamt & Equipment Nuvama Wealth and Investiment Limited 0.00 0.01
Edelweiss Finance & lavestments Limited - 0.02
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited* - 0.0¢
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited* - 0.00
Edelweiss Tokio Life Ensusance Company Limited - 0.22
ECL Finance Limited* - 000
(IV}  Balances with related partics
| [nvestiments in cquity sharcs Edeiweiss Retait Finance Limited 2064.00 264.00
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Lintited - 12033
FEdclweiss Rural & Comporate Services Limited 5.350.17 5.356.17
ECE Finance Limited 4,031.50 _
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 2.934.53 2,934,523
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 733.89 733.89
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited - 2,304.08
2 Investinents in compulsory convertible preferences shares Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Eimited 500.00 500.00
3 Investments i Preference shares Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 20.00 B
3 Investments in compulsory convertible debentures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 9.600.0¢ 9.000.00
ECap Equities Limited (fonmerly Edel Land Limited) 2,000.00 2.00G.00
4 Debenture and bonds (Investments) of ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 86,15 4,292.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 58 .40 58.40
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 20.78 19.80
ECL Finance Limited 2.474.04 -
5 Subordinate debt issued o Edel Land Limited 70.00 70.00
ECL Finance Limited 56.00 56.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 24.00 24,60
6 Interest acrrued on subordinate debt ECap Equities Limnited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 5.19 5.1¢
ECL Finance Limited 4.15 4.5
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.78 1.78
7 Non- convertibie debentures held by ECap Equities Limited (formerty Edel Land Limited) 1.640.00 -
ECL Finance Limited 2720.00 -
Edelweiss Retait Finance Limited 140.00 -
8 Enterest accrued on non- convertible debentures hekl by ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 127.16 -
ECL, Finance Limnited 17.06 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 10.85 -
G Short term {cans taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 4.10
10 Eong term foans taken from Edehweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 2,632.60
Edeiweiss Financial Services Eimited 11,389.53 8,051.20
Aflium Finance Private Limited 230.00 R
11 Short tern foans given to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.671.50 -
ECap Equities Eimited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 643.80 1.476.65
Edehweiss Securitics And Investiments Private Limited 1,546.08 150.00
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 685.71 -
Edeicap Securities Limited 1.554.78 -
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 18.85 -
ECap Securitics And Investments Limited 3.371.27 -
12 Long tenn foans given to Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 250,00
13 Trade Payables to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.03 0.09
e ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 0.08 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2.19 4.64
Edelweiss Broking Limited 1.69
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited - 0.05
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41, Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Related Party Transactions™ (continued)
Sr.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2022-23 2021-22

Balances with related parties (continued)

14 Other Payable Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 0.38
Edelweiss Finance & Investinents Limited - 0.08
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.08
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 1.09
Edel Investments Limited - 001

15 Other Receivable Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Liméted - 0.07
Muvama Wealth and 1nvestment Limited - 0.06
ECL Finance Limited* - 0.00
Edelweiss Securitics And Investments Private Limited 0.0% 0.13
Edel Investments Litnited 0.03 -

io Interest receivable-Accrued -Group Company Edeclhwveiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 112 -
ECap Equities Limited (forinerly Edel Land Limited) 13.76 0.45
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 50.06 2.37
Edeleap Securities Litmited 9.7} -
Edehweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 7.56 -
Comirade Commoditics Services Limited 0.21 -
ECap Securities And Investments Limited 6.80 -

17 inferest payable -Accrued -Group company Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 41.82
ECap Equitics Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 0.50 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 152.73 41.65
Aliium Finance Private Limited 233

18 Interest reccivable - acerued on debentures and boads of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 184 1.86
Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.81 -
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 0.1% 0.00
ECL Finance Limited 217.41 -

19 Cospomate Guarantee taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 470.00 470.00
Edehweiss Ruml & Corporate Services Limited 0876 726.55

* 0.00 indicates the nurnber is smaller than 0.0 [ million

Nates
| Infortaation relating to remuncration paid to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and provision
made for bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overnll basis. These arc included on cash basis. Remunemtion to XMP's shall be within the
limit as prescribed by the Companies act.
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42.

42.A

42.B

Utilisation of Borrewed funds and share premium

Buring the year, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics {Intermediaries) with the

understandiag that the intermediary shafl:
{i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ot entities identified in any manaer whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, sceurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimatc Beneficiarics

During the year, the Company has not reeeived any fund from any person{s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i} dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(if) provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiaries

Note:
1. Based on the legal opinion oblained by the Holding Company, the transactions undertaken by the Company (CIC-NBFC) of borrowing/lending/investment to and

from its holding/subsidiary/attiliate/group entity(ies) (together referred 10 as the ‘Group’) or borrowing from ocutside the Group for onward lending/investments for
carrying on their respective business in ordinary course will not attract teporting under Rule 11¢e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (the “Rales™).
Accordingly, transactions undertaken by the Company is not disclosed under the Rules.
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43. Capital Management

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) sets and monitors capital adequacy requirements for the Company from time to
time. The Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, stipulate that the Adjusted Net Worth of a
CIC-ND-SI shall at no point in time be less than 30% its risk weighted assets on balance sheet and risk adjusted
value of off-balance sheet items as on date of the last audited balance as at the end of the financial year.

The Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, further stipulate that the outside liabilities of a
CIC-ND-SI shall at no point of time exceed 2.5 times its Adjusted Net Worth as on date of the last audited balance

as at the end of the financial year.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and shareholder confidence
and to sustain the future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders® returns is
also recognised and the Company recognises the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be
possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded by a stronger capital position.

Although maximisation of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used in determining how capital is
allocated within the Company to particular operations or activities, it is not the sole basis used for decision making.
Account is also taken of synergies with other operations and activities, the availability of management and other
resources, and the fit of the activity with the Company’s longer-term strategic objectives. The Company’s policies in
respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

The Company has complied with minimurm stipulated capital requirement which has been disclosed in note 46 in the
financial statements.
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44.
44.A

44.B

44.C

Fair Value measurement:

Valuation Principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly teansaction in the principal (or most
advaniageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified

based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques:

Level I — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoeted prices for identical instruments in active markets
that company can access al the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuatien and are significant, are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unchservable input that is significant to the
measurement as whole.

Refer note 4.9 for more details on fair value hierarchy

Valuation goverance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure
appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its qualily and adequacy. Al new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are
subject to approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price
determination or validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to
information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However Finance department is also
responsible for establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair vatues are in compliance with accounting standards,

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded af fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2023 Levet 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Investments
Equity instruments - - 4,103.te 4,103.16
Other debt securities - 2,858.62 - 2.858.62
Total investments measured at fair value - 2,858.62 4.103.16 6.961.78
As at March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Investments
Other debt securities - 4,372.14 - 4.372.14

‘Fotal investments measured at fair value - 4372.14 - 4372.14
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44,

Fair Value measurement: (Continued)

D. Valuation techniques:

Bebt securities:
Fair value of debt securities is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the reperting date. The Company has used quoted

price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded, the Company has used CRISIL Corporate Bond
Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Security receipts
The market for these securities is not active. Therefore, the Company uses valuation techniques to measure their fair values. Since the security receipts are less liquid

instruments therefore they are valued by discounted cash flow models. Expected cash flow levels are estimated by using quantitative and qualitative measures regarding the
characteristics of the underlying assets including prepayment rates, default rates and other economic drivers. Securities receipts with significant unobservable valuation

inputs are classified as Level 3.

Equity instruments, preference shares, warrants and units of mutual fund:

The majority of equity insiruments are actively traded on stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are classified as Level |,
Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such instruments are also
classificd as Level 1. Unguoted equity instruments, preference shares and warrants are initially recognised at transaction price and re-measured at each reporting dale at
valuation provided by cxternal vatuer at instrument level. All unquoted instruments are classified at Level 3,

E. The fallowing table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair vaiue

Financial year ended March 2023 Security Equity  Preference Warrants Total
receipts  instruments  Shares

Investments - at April I, 2022

Purchase
Sale / redemption R .
Transfer into level 3 - 4,103.16 - - 4,103.16
Transfer from level 3 . .

Profit / Fair value change for the year recognised in profi1 or lost - - -

Investments - at March 31, 2023 - 4,103.16 - - 4,103.16

Ther¢ are no Level 3 Instruments oustanding as at March 31, 2022,

F. Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instrument of changes to key unoebservable inputs

Type of Financial Instruments Fair value Valuation Significant Range of  Increase in Change in  Decreasein Change in
of assetas Techniques Uinobserva estimates  the fair value  fhe fair value
on March ble input  for unobservab because of unobservab because of
31,2023 unobservab le input increase in  le input decrease in

je input unobservab unobscrvab
le input le input
Comparabie
fransaction

Fairvalue  Rs. 2238 per

5% 20516 3% (205.16)
share

investments in unquoted equity shares categorised at Level 3 4,163.16 and P/E and
. per share
discounted
cash flow
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44. Fair Value measurement: (Continned)

G. Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value:
The table below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that are not
carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non—financial assets and non—firancial

habilities.

As at March 31, 2023 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

[.oans 9,549.53 - - $,5449.53 9,549.53
Investments 24.821.08 - 24 821.08 24,821.08
Total Financial Assets 34,370.61 - 24,821.08 9,549.53 34,370.61

Financial Liabilities

Debt sccurities 14,810.1¢ - 8,388.05 4,748.57 13,136.62
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 11,775.09 - - 11,775.09 11,775,009
Subordinated Liabilities 161.12 - 169.30 - 169,30
Total Financial Liabilities 26,746.32 - 8,557.35 4,748.57 25,081.01
As at March 31, 2022 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Levet 3 Total

Financial Assets

Loans 1,880.91 “ - [,880.91 1.880.91
Investinents 23,222.00 - 23,222.00 - 23,222.00
Total Financial Assets 25,102.91 - 23,222.00 1,880.91 25,102.91

Financial Liabilities

Debt securities 6,691.33 - 5,578.89 - 5,578.89
Borrowings (other than debt securities) [0,771.37 - - 10,771.37 10,771.37
Subordinated Liabilities 161,12 - 162.48 - 162.48
Total Financial Liabilities 17,623.82 - 5,741.37 - 16,512.74

H. Valuation Methodologies of Financial Instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded
and measured at fair value in the Company's financial statements, These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The
below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and
assumptions explained in notes,

Short Term Financial Assets and Liabilities

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade
payables approximate the fair.value because of their- short-terin nature. -Difference between -carrying amounts and - fair -values of other
financials assets and other financial liabilities is not significant in each of the years presented.

Financial assets at amortised cost
The fair values financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash

flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by vields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk.
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45, Risk Mansgement

A. Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Company's business activities, When the Company extends a corporate or retail loan, buys or sells sccurities in market, or offers
other products or services, the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overall objective is to manage is businesses, and the associated risks, in
a anner that balances serving the interests of its customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Company believes that effective risk managetent requires:

1) Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issucs, by ail individuals within the Company;
2) Ownership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within cach of the lines of business and Carporate; and

3) Firmwide structures for risk governance

The Cotpany strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and development and othier measures.

B. Risk Management Structure

We have a weil-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks associated wilh the
various business activitics. The risk fanction is monitored primarily by the business risk group, The Edelweiss Group has aiso established a Global Risk
Commitiee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities at a central Jevel,

wnt palicy

Cur risk 1 el

that the margin requiremends are conservative 1o be able to withstand market velatility and scenarios of sharply declining

prices. As a result, we follow conservative lending norms. The Edehweiss Group centralises the risk monitoring systems to monitor our client's credit exposure
which is in addition to the monitoring undertaken by the respective businesses.
The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board has
established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Committee
holds regular meetings and repert to board on ifs activities.

The audit committee oversees how manapement monitors compliance with #he Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adeguacy
of the risk management framewaork I relation 1o the risks faced by the Company. The audit commiitee is assisted i its oversight role by internal audil. Internal
audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk nanagement controls and procedures, the resuits of which are reported 1o the audit committee.

C. Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal & credit control
precesses, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the preseribed policies and approving loans at transaction level as
well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of muitiple checks and verifications. Our key business processes are regularly monitored by
1le lead of our business or operations. Our loan approval and administration procederes, coflection and enforcement procedures are desipned to minimise

delinguencies and smaxiimise recoveries.

At all levels of the Company’s operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order fo cnsure that all business divisions have
access fo oxtensive. necessary and up-to—date information.
1# is the Company's policy that a monthly bricfing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant mensbers of the Company in the utilisation of market
limits, proprietary investinents ard liquidity, plus any other risk developments.
It is the Company’s policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisaticnal risk culture. Ewployees are expected to take ownership and
be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to. The Company's continuous training and developiment emphasises that employees are made aware of
the Company's tisk appetite and they are supported in their roles and respensibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk
appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are important elements of employees’ annual ratings and semunezation reviews.

D. Types of Risks

The Company's risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:

Notes |Risks

Arising from

Measurement, mosnitoring and management of sisk

1{Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a
customer or counterparly fails to meet an
obligation under a contract.

Arises principally from financing,
deating in Corporate Bonds, Investments
in Mutual Fund, Equity, but also from
certain other products such as
guarantees and derivatives

Mensured as the amount that could be lost if a customer or
counterparty fails to make repayments;

Monitored wsing various internal risk management measures and
within limits approved by individuals within a framework of
delegated authoritics; and

Managed through a robust risk control framework, which outlines
clear and consistent policies, principles and guidance for risk
managers.

2| Liguictity risk

sufficient financial
resources to meet our obligations

cxcessive cost.

Liquidity risk is the risk that we do not have

as they fall duc or that we can cnly do so at an

Liguidity risk arises from mismatches in
the thming of cash flows.

Arises when illiquid asset positions
cannot be funded at the expected terms
and when required.

Measured using a range of metrics, inchiding Asset Liability
mismatch, Debt Equity Ratio

Repular monitoring of funding levels to ensure to meet the
requiremcent for Business and matetity of our liabilities.

Maintain diverse sources of funding and liquid assets te facilitate
fexibility in mecting our liquidity requirements of the Company.

[

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that
movements i tearket factors, such

will reduce our incone or ihe value of our
partfolios

6.\&0;{

as Interest rates, equity prices and Index prices,

Exposure to market risk is
separated into two porifolios: trading
atd non-trading.

Measured using sensitivities, detaited picture of potential gains
and Zosses for a range of market movements and scenarios.

Manitored using measures, including the sensitivity of net interest
income.

Managed using risk limits approved by the risk inanagement
committee.
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45, Risk Management

45.0.1 Credit Risk
Crecit risk is the zisk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 1o meet its contractual obligations. and arises principally
from the Company’s Trade receivables and Loans. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. In case the loans are (o be restructured, similar credit assessment process is followed by the

Company.

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainiy by the individual characteristics of each customer, However, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of iis customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which custemers operate.

The Company manages and centrols credit risk by setting limits oa the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties/Groups (Single Bomowing
Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and for industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Comgpany and market infelligence. Quistanding customer receivables
are regularly monitored. The credit gaality review process aims 1o allow the Company to assess the potentiat loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take
correetive actions,

Derivative financiai Instruments:

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instrumenis is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair valucs. as recorded on the balance sheet. With pross—settled
derivatives. the Company is alse exposed to a settlernent risk, being the risk that the Company honours its obligation. but the couaterparty fails to deliver the counter value.

Impairment Assesment:

The Comgany applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. The expected credit Joss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which
takes into account historical credit ioss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The expected credit foss is a product of exposure at default, probability of default and less given defanlt. The Company has devised an internal model to evaluate the
probability of defauit and loss given default based on fhe parameters set out in lad AS. Accordingly. the foans are classified inte various stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade 0 dpd and 1 to 30 dpd Stage |
Standard grade 31 to 90 dpd Stage 2
Non-performing
Individually impaired 90+ dpd Stage 3

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows thai are due fo an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the enlity expeets o
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Eoss (ECL} computation is not driven by any single methodology. however methodology

andl approach used must reflect the following:
1} An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes
2} Reasonahle and supporiable infermation that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current cosditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions:

3) Time valuc of money
While the tinse value of moaey element is currently being factored into ECL mensurement while discounting cash flows by the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). the objective of
develaping a macroeconomic modet using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the first two requirements. This has been achieved by using the model
ouiput 1o adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward tooking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted. classified as Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL cafculations, in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due.
Classification of assets form stage 1 to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past duc have been identified as
accounts where significant increase in credit risk kas been observed. These accounts lave been classified as Stage 2 assets. When such events eceur. the Company carefully
considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calenlations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Probability of Defauit

Probability of default {PD} is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based on historical internal data available
with the Company. While arriving at the PD. the Company also ensures that the factors that affects the macro economic trends ate considered to a reasonable exteat,
wherever necessary. Company calculates the 12 tnonth PD by taking into account the past historical trends of the Loans/portfolio and its credit performance. In case of
assets where there is a significant increase in credit risk / credit impaired assets. lifetime FD has been applied.

Loss Given Default (LGD)
The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default. taking inte account, antong other atiributes, the mifigating effect of collateral value at the time it
is expected 16 be reatised and the time valae of money. The Loss Given Default (LGD) has been computed with workont methodology. Workout LGD is widety considered
to be the most Mexible, transparent and logical appreach to build an 1.GD model. Along with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to
estimate future recoveries in LG computation, Workout EGD computation involves the actual recoveries as weil as future recoveries (as a part of the workout process) on
a parlicular facility. as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal
outstanding for each toan was assessed. which went into the denominator of the LGD calculation. LGED computation has been done for each segment and sub-segment
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45.D.2

Risk Management (continued)
Credit Risk {continued)

Exposure at Default (EAD)
The @nount which the boreower wilt ewe to the porifolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the drawn credit line reflects the explicit
exposire for the Company. there might he variable exposure that may inerease the EAD, These exposures are of the nature where the Company provides future
commitiments, in addition to the current credit. Therefore, the exposure will contain botl: on and off balance sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following
formula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line

Where.
Drawn Credit Ling = Current outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) ~ Expected future drawdowt: as a proportion of undrawn amount

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Companay has commiticd and the drawn credit line White the drawn exposure and limits for the
customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

Forward looking adjustments
“A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and using reasonable and supporiable
information that is available without undue cost or ¢ffort at the repotting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of fulure economic corditions.”

To fulfil the above requirement Company has incorporated forward looking information inte its measurement of ECE. The objective of developing a macroeconomic model
using exogencus macroeconcmic variables (MEVs) is to address the requirestents of urbiased. probability weighted outcomes while taking into accoun? current conditions
as well as future eccnomic conditions. This wilf be achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk compenent in order to make it forward looking and probability-
weighted.

Exogenous macroeconomic parameters were used as independent (X} variables to predict the dependent (¥) variable. Keeping in mind Ind AS requirements around
obtaining reliable and supportable information, withcut incurring undue cost or effort- based on advice of risk commitiee members and econormic experts and consideration
of a variety of external actual and forecast information, the Company formulates base case view of the futare dircction of relevant econotnic variable as well as a
representative range of other possible forecast scenario. This process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considezing the relative
probabilities of each outcome.

Data sourcing

The Company is expected to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. Keeping in mind the above requirement
macroeconomic information was aggregated from Economic Intelligence Unit (ERU), Bloomberg, World Bank. RBE database. The EF data has a database of around 150
macrocconarmic variables as well as their forecasted values. Beyond 2022 macro-economic variables are forecasted by mear: reverting the values to their long term average.
External information includes economic data and forecasts published by governmentat bodics and monetary authorities in the country. supranationai crganisations such as
the OECD and the IMF. and selected private sector and academic forecasters.

Probability weighted scenario creations:

To incorpoerate macroeconomic impact into probability-weighted, each scenatio has an associated probability. I order to ensure consistency across macroeconomic models,
these probabilities were calculated at an overall level for both Retail and Non-Retail portfolios. keeping in mind that though the impact of a scenario across different
portfalios may differ based on endogenous factors, the probability of a scenario unfolding is purely exogenous. and hence should not vary.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each partfolio of financial instruments and using an analysis of historical data.
has estimated relationship between marco-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assess have been develeped based on analysing fiistorical data
over the past 5 years.

Risk Concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities. or activitics in the same geographical region, or have similar economic
features that woutd cause their ability to meet contractuai obligations to be sinitarly affected by changes in economic. political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Company's perfermance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical locatios.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policics and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolia.
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the compenents of the balance sheet
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45, Risk Management fconfinmed)
Credit Risk (continned)

45.D.2 Industry anabysis - Risk concentration as at March 31, 2023

Particalars Fmax‘zclal State & Central Agriculture Industry  Real Estate Service Retail Others Total
Services Government Sector Loans

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 20.63 - - - - - - - 20.63

Loans 9.549.53 - - - - - - - 9.549.53

Envestments 16,945 88 - - - - 14.856.98 - - 31.802.86

Other financial assets 2.12 - - - - G.09 - - 2.21

Total Assets 26.518.16 . - - - 14.857.07 - - 41.375.23

Inctustry analysis - Risk concentration as at March 31, 2022

Particulars me,ma! Stafe & Central Agriculture Industry  Real Estate Service Retail Others Taotal
Services Government Sector Loans

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 10.93 - - - - - - - 10.93

Loans 1.880.91 - - - - - - - 1.880.91

Investiments 12.131.97 - - - - 14,856.17 - - 27.594.14

Other financial asscts 2.26 - - - - 0.07 - - 3

Total Assets 14,632.07 - . - - 14,856.24 - - 2948831

45.D0.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements
Mo collateral is held against the exposure as at March 31, 2022

The tables below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with details on collaterals held against exposure.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

As at s
]t
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 | 7epal type of collateral

As at

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 206.63 10.93
Loans:

i) Corporate Credit $.,549.53 1.88G.91
Investiments 31.802.86 27.594.14
Other financial assets 2.21 2.3
Total Financial Assets 41,375.23 29.488.31

Loan is unsecured
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45, Risk Management (Continned)

45.E Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting cbligations associated with tinancia liabilities that are sefiled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises becausc of the possibitity that the Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations when
they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances,

Company has a Liquidity Contingency Policy in place to ensure various liquidity parameters are defined and tracked regularly, Liquidity Management Team is
provided with update on cxpected liquidity shortfalls in Normal as well as Stress scenario.

To manage the stressed circumstances the Company has ensured maintenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the form of Investments in Governmen! Securities,
Mutual Funds and Quoted Equity Shares. These assets carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. A liquidity cushion
amounting to 3-9% of the borrowings is sought o be maintained through such assets. These would be to tzke care of immediate obligations while cantinuing to
honour our commitments as a going concern, There are availabic lines of credit from banks which are drawable on notice which further augment the available
sources of funds. Funding is raised through diversified sources including Banks, Private issue of Debt, Sub Debt cle to maintain 2 healthy mix.

As at March 31, 2023 - Analysis of contractual matarities of financial assets and Habilities

On Demand Upto 3 Jto6 6 Monthsto  |yearteS More than 5 Fotal
Months Months I year years years ofa
Financial Assets
{a) Cash and cash cquivalents 20.63 - - - - - 20.63
(b} Loans - 4,549,427 i14.74 2,648.27 2,237.10 - 9,549.53
{c} Investments - - - 86.15 12,808.05 18,908.66 31,802.86
(d} Other financial assets - 1.06 - - [.14 - 2.21
Total undiscounted financial assets 20.63 4,550.48 114.74 2,734.42 15,046.29 18,908.66 41,375.23
Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade payables - 16.28 - - - - 16,28
(b) Debt securities - 4,212.89 - 2,646.00 7,951.22 - 14,810,711
(c) Borrowings (other than debt sccurities) - 155.56 - - 10,619.53 1,000.00 F1,775.09
(d) Suboedinated Liabilities - - 11,12 - 150.60 B 161,12
(e) Other financial liabilities - 7.21 - - - - 7.21
Fotal undiscounted financial liabilities - 4,391.94 11.12 2,646.00 18,720.75 1,080.00 26,769.81
‘Total net financial assets / (liabilities) 20.63 158.54 103.62 88.42 (3,674.46) 17,908.66 14,605.42
As at March 31, 2022 - Analysis of contractusl maturities of financial assets and liahilities
Uptoe 3 o6 6 Monthste  1yearto5 More than 5

On Demand Months Months 1 year years years Total
Financial Assets
{a} Cash and cash cquivalents 10.93 - - - - - 16.93
(b) Loans - 629.29 19.92 833,30 398.4¢ - i,880.9!
{c) Investments - 4,072.32 110.43 16.65 9,586.19 13,808.55 27,594.14
(d) Other financial assets - 1.21 - - 1.12 - 2.33
Total undiscounted financial assets 10.93 4,702.82 13035 84995 9,985,771 13,808.55 29.488.31
Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade payables - 17.24 - - - - 17.24
(b) Debt securitics - 4,035.40 . 97.54 3.79 461.05 2:093.55 6,691.33
(c} Berrowings (other than debt securitics) - 87.57 - - 10,683.80 - 10,771.37
(d) Subordinated Liabilities - - 11.12 - 150.00 - 161.12
{c) Other financial liabifitics - 8.85 - - - - 8.85
Total undiscounted financial liabilities - 4,149.66 108.66 3.79 11,294.85 2,093.55 17,649.91

10.93 553.76 21.69 846.16 {1,309.14) 11,715.00 11,838.40
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43.
45.F

Risk Management
Market Risk {continued)
Interest Rate Risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios arc exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the futare cash flows or fair values of financial
instruments because of  change in market interest rates. Intcrest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-

approved limits for repricing bands.

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating and fixed rate
assets and liabilitics. Balance Shect Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial mmstruments. The
Roard has established limits on the non—trading interest rate gaps for stipulated periods. The Company's policy is to monitor positions on a daily basis
and hedging strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within the established hmits,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Company’s
stateinent of profit and loss and equity. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the
profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non-irading financial assets and financial tiabilities held at March 31, 2023 and at March 31, 2022

Interest rate sensitivity

As at March 31, 2023

Loans
Borrowings

Increase in

Sensitivity of

Sensitivity of

Decrease in

Sensitivity of  Sensifivity

basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
25 23.97 - 25 {23.97) -
25 (29.44) - 25 29,44 -

As at March 31, 2022

Corporate debt securities

Increase in Sensifivity of  Sensitivity of Decreasein  Sensitivity of Sensitivity
basis points Profit Eqguity basis points Profit of Equity
25 (£0.93) - 25 16.93 -




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Marcch 31, 2023

(Currency: Indian rupees in miltions)

46.

47.

48,

Regulatory disctosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)
CORE INVESTMENT COMPANY (“*CIC")

Particulars As at As at

March 11, 2023 March 3t, 2022
a) Investments & loans to group companies as a preportion of Net Assets (%o} 90.06% 99.98%
b) Investments in cquity shares and compuisorily corvertible instruments of group 60.66%) 78.77%
companics as a proportion of Net Assets {%4)
c) Capital Adequacy Ratio (%} [Adjusted Net worth / Risk Weighted Assets] 33.25% 41.05%
d} Leverage Ratio (Times) {Qutside fabilities / Adjusted Networth] 2.03 1.46
Exposure to reai estate sector

As at] As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 34, 2022

a) DHrect Exposures

(i} Residential Mortgages - Lending fully secured by Mortgages on residential property that is or will be
accupied by the borrower or that is rented property that is or will be accupied by the borrower or that is rented -
of which housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector advances are rendered

(it} Commercial Real Estate- Lending secured by morigages on commercial real estate (effice buildings, retail
space, multi purpose commercial premises, multi family residential buildings,multi tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warchouse space, hotels, Jand acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure;
would also include non fund based (NFB) limit

{iii} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS} and other securitised exposures —

a. Residential
b. Commercial Real Estate

b) Indirect Exposures
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on MNational Housing Bank (NHB} and Housing Finance Companies|

{HFCs).

2,934,353

2.934.53

Total exposure to Real Estate Sector

2,934.53

2,934.53

Disclosure of details as required by REBFDNBR/2016-17/39 i.e. Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

dated August 25, 2016 (Updated as on November 22, 2019)

Liabilities Side;
Particuiars Amount Qutstanding as at Amount Overdue as at
March 31, 2023 March 11, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1) Loans and advances availed by the CIC inclusive of]
interest acerued thereon but not paid
a} Debentures: {other than those falling within the meaning of]
Public deposits)

(i) Secured 4,371.31 4,716,65 -

(i) Unsecured 5,748.71 1,974.68 - -
b) Deferrcd Credits - - - -
¢} Term Loans - - - -
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing I1,775.09 10,778.37 - -
&) Commercial Paper 4,690.09 - - -
f) Other loans {Bank overdrafl) - - -
) Other loans (Subordinated liabilities) 161.12 161.12 - -
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48.

Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)

Disclasure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2(16-17/39 i.c. Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

dated August 25, 2016 {Updated as on Nevember 22, 2019} (continued)

Assets Side:

Particulars

Amount Qutstanding as at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

2} Break up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables (other than those included in {(4) below)
a) Secured
b) Unsecured

3) Brezk up of Leased Asscis and stock on hire and other assetscounting towards AFC activities
iy Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
{a) Financial Lease
(b) Operating lLcase
ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(a) Assets on hire
(b} Repossessed assels
iii) Other loans counting towards Asset Financing Company activities
(a) Loans where asscts have been repossessed
{b} Loans other than (a) above

4) Break up of Investments
Current Investments:
1. Quoted:
(1) Shares:
(a) Equity
() Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of Mutual Funds
{iv} Government Securitics
{v} Others

2. Unquoted:
{i} Shares:

(a) Eguity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of Mutual Funds
(iv} Govemment Securities
{v) Others

Long term Investments:
t. Quoted:

(i) Shares:

{a) Equity

(b) Preference
{ii} Debentures and Bonds
{iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others

2, Unqueted:
(i) Shares:
{a} Equity {refer note 1}
{b) Preference
(i1} Debentures and Bonds
{iii) Units of Mutual Funds
{ivy Government Securilies

{v) Others

9,549.53

2,772.47

28,924.24
20.0¢
86.15

1,380.91

23,222.00

4,292.08

Notes:

1. Unguoted equity include investment in equity, redeemable preference shares, compulsory convertible debentures and compulsory convertible preference

shares
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48,

Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)

Disclosure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2016-17/39 i.e. Master Direction -
dated August 25, 2016 (Updated as on November 22, 2019) {continued)

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above ;

Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Birections, 20116

For 2022-23
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Uinsecured Total
1. Related party
a) Subsidiaries - 1,672.50 1,672.50
b} Companies in the same group 7,877.03 7.877.03
2. Other than related parties -
Total - 9,549.53 9,549.53
For 2021-22
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured TFotal
1. Related party
a) Subsidiaries - - -
b) Companies i the same group - 1,880.91 1,880.91
2. Other than related parties - - -
Totaf - 1,880.91 1,886.91
63 Investor group-wise classificatien of all investments (current and long-term)
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Category Market Value / Market Valae /
Breakup Value or Book Value Breakup Value or Book Value
Fair Value or NAY | (Net of Provisions) | Fair Value or NAYV (Net of Provisions)
1. Related party
a} Subsidiaries 14,856.98 14,856.98 17,790.70 17,790.70
b) Companies in the same group 12,842.72 12,842.72 9,803.44 9.803.44
2. Other than related parties 4,103.16 4,103.14 B -
‘Fotal 31,802.86 31,802.86 27,594.14 27,594.14

6.1) investment in other CICs- Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made by one CIC in another CIC is Nil

6.2) Investments and movement in provision

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As af,
Mareh 31, 2022

I. Value of Investments*

i) Gross Valuc of Investments
2) In India
b} Qutside Indix

ii} Provisions for Depreciation
a) In Enelia
b) Quiside India

iii) Net Value of Investments
a) In India
b) Outside India

2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investmenis
i} Opening balance

i) Add : Provisions made during the year

ii1) Less : Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions during the year
iv} Closing balence

31,802.86

31,802.86

27,594.14

27,594.14

*It includes enly investments (Refer Note 11C)
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Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)

48.  Disclosure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2Z016-17/39 i.e. Master Direction - Core Tivestment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

49.

dated August 25, 2616 (Updated as on November 22, 2019} (continved)

T} Other information

Particulars

Amount Outstanding as at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a} Related Parties
(k) Other than Related Partics

(it Net Non-Performing Assets
(a} Related Parties
{b) Other than Related Parties

{iii} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Disclosure on Hquidity risk

As required in terms of paragraph 3 of RBI Circular RBI/2619-20/88 DOR,NBFC (PI3) CC. No. 102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liquidity

Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies.

I. Funding concentration hased on significant counterparty (borrowings)

As at March 31, 2023

Number of significant counterparties* Amount % of Total Deposits |% of Totaf
Liabilities

g 18,731.73 NA 69.88%

‘Total 18,731.73 - 69.88%

As at March 31, 2022

Number of significant counterparties* Amount % of Total Deposits (% of Tatal
Liabilities

6 12,471.90 NA 70.55%

Total 12,471.90 - 70.55%

* “Significant counterparty " is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1%
of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities.

2. Top 20 large deposits
The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Beposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India got converted into

Core Investment Company (CIC) as NBFC-CIC-ND-SE, does not accept puslic deposits.

3. Top 10 borrowings {amount in T millions and % of fotal borrowings)

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Amount* % of Total
Borrowings**

Top 10 Investors 18,981.73 70.97%)

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Amount* % of Total
Borrawings**

Top 10 Investors 13,033.40 73.95%

* Represents principal ammowt
** Toral borrowings represents debt securities + borrowings (other than debt securities) + subordinated liabilities

4. Funding concentration based on significant insfrument / product

As at March 31, 2023

Amount % of Total Liahilities
Name of the instrument / product
Debt securities
Intra Group borrowings

14,971.23
11,775.09

55.85%)
43.93%

As at March 31,2022

Amount % of Total Liahilities
MName of the instrument / product
Debt securities
Intra Group borrowings

6.852.45
10,771.37

38.76%
60.93%
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49,

Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)

Disclosure on liguidity risk {continued)

5. Stock Ratas
As at] As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Commercial papers as a % of total public funds 17.54% 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total liabilitics 17.50% 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total assets 1E.16%: 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of tota 0.00%| 0.00%
Non-cenvertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of totat 0.06% 0.00%
Non-convertible debeatures (eriginal maturisy of less than one year) as a % of total 0.00% 0.00%
Other short term liabilities * - -
Other short-term liabilities, if any as & % of 10tal public funds** 0.00% 0.00%
Other short-term liabilities, i any as a % of total liabilities*** 0.00% 0.00%
Other short-torm liabilities, if any as a % of total assets 0.00% 0.00%

* “Other short-term liabilities™ refers to the borrowing in short term in nature.

** “Total public funds™ refers to the aggregate of Debt securities, Borrowing (other than debt securities) and Subordinated liabilities.

*** “Total liabilities ” refers to total external liabilities (i.e. excluding totat equity).

6. Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Asset-Liability gap is being monitored from time to time to overcome the asset-liability mismatches, interest risk exposure, etc, if any. The Liquidity risk
emanates from the possible mismatches due to differences in maturity and repayment profile of assets and liabilities. The Company ensures that the credit and
investment expesure are only with the group companies and are within the statutory limits as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India fiom time to time. The
Company wili continue to get support from the Holding Company in the form of equity infusion and is necessary support o repay its dues on timely basis.
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50. Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR (NBFC)LCC.PD.No. 109/22,19.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2026 pertaining to Assct

Classification as per RBI Norms

As per the RBI circular RBY2019-20/170 dated 13th March, 2020, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is fower than the provisioning reguired under
IRACP (including standard asset provisiening), NBFCs {CICs) shall appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate ‘hmpairment
Reserve’, Further, no withdrawals shall be permitted from this reserve without prior permission from the RBI

As at March 31, 2023
Loss Allowances
Asset Gross Carrying  |(Provisions) as Provisiens Difference between
Asset Classification as per RBI classification as  [Amount as per required under [Net Carrying |required as per [Ind As 109 Provisions
Norms per Ind AS 139 Ind AS ind AS 109 Amount IRACP norms  |and IRACP norms
A B C=A-B D L=B-D
Performing Assets
Standard Stage | 0,587.88 38.35 9,549.53 38.35 -
As at March 31, 2022
Loss Allowances
Asset Gross Carrying  [(Provisions) as Provisions Difference between

Asset Classification as per RBI

classification as

Amount as per

required under

Net Carrying

required as per {Ind As 109 Provisions

Norms per Ind AS 102 [Ind AS Ind AS 109 Amount IRACP norms |and IRACP noerms
A B C=A-B D E=B-D
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 1,888.46 7.55 1,880.91 7.35 -
51, Asset Liability Management -Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and Habilities
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Liabilities Assets
Market Inter group

borrowings borrowings Advance Investments
1 day to 30/31 days (One month) - 155.56 162.24 -
Over One months to 2 months 2,043.16 - 2,491.60 -
Over 2 months up to 3 months 2,169.73 - 2.295.58 -
Over 3 months to 6 months 1112 - 114.74 -
Over 6 months to | year 2,646.00 - 2,648.27 86.15
Over | year {0 3 years 3,939.34 7,619.53 2,237.10 10,727.03
Over 3 years to 5 years 4,161.88 3,000.00 - 2081.02
Over 5 years - 1,000.00 - 18,908.66
Fotal 14,971.23 £1,775.09 9,549.53 31,802.86
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Liabilitics Assets

Market Inter group

borrowings borrowings Advance Investmenis
i day to 30/31 days (One month) - 83.47 [51.81 440.75
Over One montks to 2 months 405.74 - 440.00 -
Qver 2 months up to 3 months 3,629.66 4.10 40.00 3,631.57
Over 3 menths to 6 months 108.66 - 20.00 110.43
Qver 6 moaths to'1 year 379 - 836.65 16.65
Over | year to 3 years 398.36 10,683.80 400.00 9,566.39
Over 3 years {o 5 years 212.69 - - 19.80
C(ver 5 years 2,093.55 - - 13,808.55
Total 6,852,45 16,771.37 1,888.46 27,594.14
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52, Provisions and Contingencies:

Break up of *Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 20231  March 31, 2022
Provisions for depreciation on investent - -
Provision towards non-performing assets : - -
Provision made towards Incoine tax {shown below profit
before tax)
Current tax - -
Deferred tax 208.78 (164.43)
Current tax relating to earlicr years - 0.14
Impact of change in the rate on opening deferred tax - -
Other provisioa and contingencies:
Provision for standard assets 30.80 6.04

53. Miscellaneous
[} Registraticn obtained from other financial sector regulators: No registration has been obtained from other financial sector regulators.

11} Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators: No penalties have been imposed by RBI or other repulators during the year. {Previous Year: NiL)

[If) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:

As at March 31, 2023
instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks Acuite
i} Long Term Instruments
Rating AA-/Negative A+/Stable A+/Negative | AA-/Negative] AA-Negative
Amount £3,670.00 6,120.00 2,000.00 2,720.00 2,600.00
i) Short Term Instruments
Rating Al - Al+ Al+ -
Amount 15,000.00 - 10,000.0¢ 10,000.00 -
iii} Market link debentures - Long term
PP-MLD AA-} PP-MLD [ICRA} PP-MLD
Rating MNegative, A+/Stable A+/Negative, - -
Amount [5,424.20 1,537.60 1,458.20 - -
iv) Market link debentures - Short term
Rating PP-MID Al+ - - - -
Amount 5,000.00 - - - -
As at March 31, 2022
Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks
i) Long Tenn Instruments
Rating AA-/Negative A+/Negative A+/Stabie AA-fstable
Amount 11,950.60 6,120.00 2,000.00 3,000.00
ii) Short Term Instruments
Rating Al+ - - -
Amount 15,000.00 - - -
iif) Market fink debentures - Long tern
PP-MLD AA-} PP-MLD [ICRA] PP-MLD
Rating t/Negtive At+/Negative, A+/Stable] -
Amount 19,193.80 2,669.90 1,691.10 -
iv) Market link debentures - Short term
Rating PP-MLD Al+r - - -
Amount 5,000.00 - - -
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Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)

Other Additional Regulatery Information

Title deeds of Iinmaovable Properties not held in name of the Company
The Company de not have any immovable properties where title decds are not held in the name of the company.

Loans and Advances
There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans which are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies

Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are:
(a) repayable on demand or
(b} without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Detatis of Benami Property held
The Company do not kave any benami property, where any praceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.

Security of current assets against borrowings
The Company has no borrowings from banks or financial mstitutions on the basis of security of current assets.

Wilfui Defaulter
The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other fender.

Relationship with Struck off Comparies
The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Undisclosed income
The Company have not any such transaction whick is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in

the tax assesstnents under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961}

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtuai Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Cusrency during the current financial year and any of the previous financial years.

54. 10 Compliance with manber of layers of companies

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 20i7.
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55, The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the Provident Fund and the Gratuity Act and rules there under. The

Ministry of Labour and Employment has also releascd draft rules thereunder on November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stakehelders which are
under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact if any, and account for the same onice the neles are notified and
become effective,

. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified whesever necessary to confirm to current year presentation.

As per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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